
COUNCIL AGENDA AUGUST 2024.pdf

Draft July 16 3024 Council Minutes.pdf

pay ordinance no 2288.pdf

Financial Statement July 31 2024.pdf

Financial Report August 2024.pdf

Police Department Report August 2024.pdf

Service Department Report August 2024.pdf

Fire Department Report - August 2024.pdf

FAQ - Wastewater.pdf

Ordinance No 2024-28.pdf

Ordinance No 2024-29.pdf

Ordinance No 2034-30.pdf

Ordinance No 2034-31.pdf

Resolution No 2024-32.pdf



 

 

VILLAGE OF GATES MILLS 

COUNCIL AGENDA  

AUGUST 20, 2024 

5:30 p.m. 

 

COMMUNITY HOUSE, 1460 CHAGRIN RIVER ROAD 

 (Livestream available on YouTube – click on the link on  

www.gatesmillsvillage.com to watch) 

1. Roll Call. 

2. Minutes of Council meeting of July 16, 2024.    Clerk. 

3. Pay Ordinance #1288    $588,028.52     Clerk. 

4. Mayor’s Report.        Mayor. 

a. Storm Review and Update. 

b. Mayfield City School District Town Hall meeting. 

c. Continued Discussion of Zoning. 

i. Council Workshop. 

ii. Town Hall. 

5. Clerk’s Report.        Clerk. 

6. Financial Report.       Mayor. 

7. Police Department Report.      Minichello. 

8. Service Department Report.      Biggert. 

9. Fire Department Report.       Majeski. 

10. Committee Reports.  

a. Broadband.        Deacon. 

b. Wastewater Committee.      Broome. 

c. Treasury Investment Board.     Morgan. 

d. Finance/Budget.      Mayor. 

e. Safety.        Mayor. 

f. Tree Canopy.       Turner. 

11. Ordinance No. 2024-28       Mayor. 

An Ordinance Amending Section 155.04, Investment Policy, of the Codified Ordinances of the 

Village of Gates Mills and Adopting an Investment Policy Statement with Guidelines. 

12. Ordinance No. 2024-29        Steinbrink. 

An Ordinance Amending Section 1131.07 and Enacting New Section 1157.10 of Chapter 1157, 

“Zoning Uses”, of the Codified Ordinances of The Village of Gates Mills To Prohibit Adult Use 

Cannabis Operators in the Village. 

13. Ordinance No. 2024-30       Mayor. 

An Ordinance to Amend the Annual Appropriation Ordinance No. 2023-49 to Increase Certain 

Appropriations and Other Expenditures of the Village of Gates Mills, Ohio, for the Fiscal Year 

Ending December 31, 2024. 

http://www.gatesmillsvillage.com/


 

 

14. Resolution No. 2024-31       Mayor. 

A Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Transfer of Certain Sums from the General Fund to the 

Capital Improvement Fund. 

15. Resolution No. 2024-32       Mayor. 

A Resolution Authorizing a Change Order to the Contract with The Eclipse Companies, 

LLC for the County Line Road Culvert #20 Project and Declaring an Emergency. 

16. Council Matters.  

17. Business from the Audience. 

18. Adjourn. 

 

Proposed Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda may be obtained by calling Village Hall, 440-423-4405. 

































































 

 

Gates Mills Fire Department 
July 2024 Council Report   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

OVER 

 

 

 

DATE NFIRS 

NUMBER 

Address/Location Description of Incident 

07-01-24 2024-123 Chagrin River & Berkshire Rd Motor Vehicle Crash with possible injuries. 

07-02-24 2024-124 6847 Gates Mills Blvd. Public Service. 

07-05-24 2024-125 4 Whisperwood  Structure Fire-Auto Aid /Chagrin Falls and Hunting Valley. 

07-08-24 2024-126 37699 Gates Mills Blvd. Fire Alarm. 

07-08-24 2024-127 37749 Cedar Road Public Service. 

07-08-24 2024-128 7530 Old Mill Road Fire Alarm. 

07-08-24 2024-129 1283 Plainfield Road. Fire Investigation Unit. 

07-09-24 2024-130 7730 Old Mill Road Smoke Detector Activation. 

07-11-24 2024-131 Mayfield and West Hill  WB Motor Vehicle Crash no injuries. 

07-12-24 2024-132 1540 Chagrin River Road Smoke Detector Activation. 

07-12-24 2024-133 7670 Deerfield Road Heat Detector Activation. 

07-16-24 2024-134 1215 Fox Hill Drive Fire Alarm. 

07-16-24 2024-135 1420 Cardinal Lane Fire Alarm. 

07-18-24 2024-136 940 Chestnut Run CO Alarm. 

07-22-24 2024-137 1139 West Hill Road Fire Alarm. 

07-22-24 2024-138 452 Overlook Road Fire Alarm. 

07-23-24 2024-139 495 Hillside Lane Building Struck by Tree.  Structural Stability Check. 

07-24-24 2024-140 12465 County Line Auto-Aid Fire Alarm. 

07-24-24 2024-141 35001 Cedar Fire Alarm. 

07-25-24 2024-142 971 Chestnut Run Fire Alarm. 

07-26-24 2024-143 Mayfield and West Hill Motor Vehicle Crash with injuries. 

07-28-24 2024-144 971 Chestnut Run Fire Alarm. 

07-30-24 2024-145 500 County Line Road Fire Alarm. 

07-31-24 2024-146 7889 Sherman Road  Medical Assist-First Aid. 

07-31-24 2024-147 7500 Chelsea Lane CO Alarm – Possible exposure symptoms.   

CURRENT MONTH TOTAL 2024 YEAR TO DATE 2023 YEAR TO DATE 

G.M. FIRE            25 147 116 

M.V. EMS             26                     121                     139 

Cancelled                 0                       4  



 

 

The July training topics were: 

 

July 9, 2024. New Electric Vehicle Emergency Plug use and demo on Tesla Electric Vehicle. Review                              

Electric Vehicle Fire Blanket.  Review Auto Extraction Tools and Stabilization Equipment on E-

1412. Vehicle Checks 1411 & 1412. 

 

July 23, 2024. Vehicle check on E-1411. Basic Pump Operations E-1411 &E-1412.  Basic air pack use and 

procedures.  Don and Doff Drill with turnout gear and air pack.  Bottle change demo. Buddy 

breathing procedure and RIC bag and RIC rope bag procedures and demo. 

    

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thomas Majeski       August 1, 2024  

  

July employee anniversaries: 
Lieutenant Dan Dickson – 22 years. 
Lieutenant Mike Feig – 18 years. 
Fire Fighter Lee Klein – 18 years. 
Fire Fighter Jacob Conte – 3 years. 
 
 

 
 
  

 



FAQ - Wastewater.docx 8/12/2024 12:10 PM 1 

Village of Gates Mills 
Wastewater Committee 
Frequently Asked Questions 
 
Q.  What’s being discussed? 
 
A.  The Village of Gates Mills and the Chagrin Valley Hunt Club (hereafter, the Club) are discussing a 
consolidation of the Club’s wastewater treatment plant into the Village’s municipally operated 
system and plant. There is no immediate problem. Rather, this is the start of a process to provide 
for the appropriate long-term solution of wastewater, which aligns with Ohio EPA’s regionalization 
priorities. 
 
Q.  What are the benefits to the Village? 
 
A.  The top priority is protection of the State’s Scenic Chagrin River by eliminating the risk of 
pollution coming from the effluents of a private operator. Further, additional volume into the 
Village’s system will improve its operating efficiency.  Making this operator conversion ensures the 
appropriate, long-term handling of the wastewater by a municipality rather than a private system 
operator.  
 
Q.  What are the benefits to the Club? 
 
A.  The Club is evaluating alternatives for replacing its system. This alternative takes advantage of 
an existing proven wastewater system and plant operated by a municipality, thereby eliminating the 
Club’s need to design, construct, operate and maintain a separate system.  
 
Q.  What are supporting organizations saying about this?  
 
A.  The Chagrin River Watershed Partners, the Cuyahoga County Board of Health, Cuyahoga County 
Department of Public Works – Sanitary Division, and the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District 
have all voiced support for the project. 
 
Q.  How will the systems be consolidated? 
 
A.  In the simplest terms, the Club’s current system will be converted to a newly constructed pump 
station on the Club’s property and its WWTP will be abandoned. From that point, a newly 
constructed force main will move the waste north along Chagrin River Road to the bridge. The force 
main will go under the river and the waste will be connected to the Village’s system just north of the 
Old Livery Tavern. From there it will flow to the existing pump station behind Gates Mills Village Hall 
where it will be pumped to the Village WWTP at River and Mayfield.  
 
Q.  Who will operate and maintain the system going forward? 
 
A.  The Village will be responsible for the operation of the system including inspection, normal 
maintenance, repairs and replacements under agreements with the Club. 



FAQ - Wastewater.docx 8/12/2024 12:10 PM 2 

The Club will be expected to sign a 20-year operating agreement to use the system and treatment 
plant. The Village will use access and construction easements to construct the project and manage 
the system.  
 
Q.  What’s the cost? 
 
A.  The construction, maintenance and treatment will be documented in agreements the parties 
will negotiate and the regulators will review. There are numerous design choices that will affect 
equipment and construction costs. As an order of magnitude though, the project is expected to 
cost between $500,000 and $800,000.  
 
Q.  Who is paying for this?  
 
A.  The cost will be paid for by the Club, likely through a real estate tax assessment. Village funds 
cannot be spent on a private operator system.  
 
Q.  How will the financing work? 
 
A.  The Village expects to apply to the Ohio EPA Water Pollution Control Loan Fund (WPCLF) and to 
the Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC). These are two separate processes and funding 
sources. Assuming funding from one or both of these sources, the Village will be able to draw down 
the design and construction costs from these sources.  
 
The WPCLF and the OPWC provide attractive financing to municipal operators, making the Village’s 
involvement key to this long-term solution. The Club will reimburse the Village for any loan 
payments to the State, plus the Village’s administrative costs. 
 
Q.  Does the Village have the capacity in its current system, pumps and treatment 
plant to handle the additional volume? 
 
A.  Yes. The Village’s current system routinely operates at less than 50% of capacity.  
 
Q.  When will this process start? 
 
A.  The Village expects the WPCLF nomination process to open in August 2024. If nominated, the 
Village would complete its application in September. The OPWC timing is similar, fourth quarter of 
2024. Funding decisions by these organizations could occur in early 2025. Construction could start 
later in 2025.  
 
The Village and the Club also need to discuss and negotiate contracts and agreements which can 
start in the next several weeks.  
 
Q.  Can residences tie into the Village system?  
 
A.  No. The system has been designed and built and operates as a commercial system serving the 
Village Center. There are no residences tied into the system. 



 

 

           

 

         ORDINANCE NO.  2024-28 

 

       BY:   MAYOR SIEMBORSKI 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 155.04, INVESTMENT POLICY, OF 

THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF GATES MILLS AND 

ADOPTING AN INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT WITH GUIDELINES 

 

WHEREAS, this Council desires to amend the Village’s codified ordinance setting forth 
its formal investment policy in the manner set forth below and to issue an investment policy 
statement with guidelines to the Village’s authorized Investment Advisor to simplify the direction 
given to the Investment Advisor; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Gates Mills, 

Ohio, that: 

 

Section 1: Section 155.04 is hereby amended to hereinafter provide as follows: 

 

" 155.04.  INVESTMENT POLICY. 

   (a)    Definitions. 

      (1)   “Eligible Investment" means any investment described in subsection (i) hereof. 

      (2)   "Investment Advisor" means a person or entity which the Council has 

determined has the experience, and training, to provide advice and recommendations in 

regard to overall portfolio investment strategy as well as individual investments of 

Village funds with whom the Village has contracted in writing to provide such advice and 

such recommendations. 

(3)   “Public Moneys" means all moneys in the treasury of the Village or moneys 

coming lawfully into possession of the Treasurer. 

(4)   "Qualified Securities Dealer" means a securities dealer who is a member of the 

National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. 

(5)   “Uniform Depository Act" means Chapter 135 of the Ohio Revised Code 

("ORC"), and all amendments thereto. 

(b)    Treasury Investment Board. There is hereby established a Treasury Investment 

Board, consisting of the Treasurer and not less than two members of Council who shall 

be appointed by Council and shall be, ex-officio, members of the Finance Committee of 

Council. 

(c)    Scope. All public moneys of the Village on deposit with an Eligible Depository 

(any institution described in ORC 135.03) may be invested by the Treasurer or such 

official's designee, or by the Village's Investment Advisor, upon approval of the 

Treasurer or such official's designee in the Eligible Investments described below. The 

Treasurer is authorized to pool cash balances of the several funds of the Village for 

investment. 

(d)    Objectives. The achievement of sound fiscal management for the Village requires 

effective investment of the Public Moneys of the Village. To that effect, the following 



 

2 

21908145 _2 

investment objectives which shall all be of equal priority shall be applied in the 

investment of Public Moneys of the Village, with the achievement of each such objective 

being measured against the investment portfolio as a whole and not against an individual 

Eligible Investment: 

(1)   Safety of Principal. Credit risk shall be minimized by diversifying and 

maintaining adequate collateralization. Market risk shall be minimized by maintaining 

adequate liquidity so that current obligations can be met without a sale of securities; 

diversification of maturities; and diversification of assets. 

(2)   Liquidity. The Village's investments shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable 

the Village to meet its operating requirements that might reasonably be anticipated. 

(3)   Yield. The portfolio shall be managed to consistently attain a market rate of 

return throughout budgetary and economic cycles. 

(e)    Investment of Public Monies. The Treasurer is responsible for insuring that 

personnel follow the established investment policy. The Treasurer is authorized and 

directed to invest the Public Moneys of the Village in accordance with the provisions of 

this policy. The Treasurer may delegate the authority to invest the Public Moneys of the 

Village hereunder to an. employee or employees of the Village, or the Village's 

Investment Advisor. 

The Treasurer is authorized and directed to recommend to Council an Investment 

Advisor to manage and invest Public Monies in a manner consistent with the Village of 

Gates Mills Investment Policy. Council must approve the selection of the Investment 

Advisor and any contract pertaining to the Advisor's services. The Treasurer, at the 

Treasurer's discretion and consistent with the Investment Advisor contract, may terminate 

the Investment Advisor contract and recommend a new Investment Advisor to Village 

Council. The Treasurer may also, at the Treasurer's discretion, recommend one or more 

additional Investment Advisors to Council. 

Once approved by Village Council, each approved Investment Advisor may execute the 

purchase and/or sale of Public Monies on behalf of the Village in a manner consistent 

with this section without the prior approval of the Treasurer. Each Advisor will be 

provided a copy of this section of the Codified Ordinances, as amended from time to 

time, and each Investment Advisor shall agree in writing to comply with the provisions of 

this section. 

Officers and employees of the Village involved in making investment decisions shall 

refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and 

management of the investment program of the Village, or that could impair their ability 

to make impartial decisions regarding the Village's investments. 

The Treasurer and the Treasurer's designee, the Mayor, the Law Director and 

Councilmembers shall not be held accountable or personally liable for any loss 

occasioned by the sale of any eligible investment if the investment policy has been 

followed. Council shall take appropriate measures to protect and defend these 

individuals. 

The Treasurer or the Treasurer's designee shall maintain accounts in which the 

Treasurer shall make appropriate entries of all transactions relating to the investment of 

Public Moneys. Interest earned on any eligible investments shall be collected and 

credited to the proper fund of the Village as required by law. 



 

3 

21908145 _2 

(f)   Minimizing Investment Risk. The Village acknowledges that investment risk can 

result from: 

      (1)   A default by the issuer of the investment, 

      (2)   Changes in the market price of the investment, or 

      (3)   Technical complications leading to temporary loss of liquidity of an investment. 

   To minimize the effect of such investment risks the following investment limitations 

shall be adhered to, except as otherwise may be approved by the Council, and a written 

record of which approval shall be maintained: 

(1)   The Village's investment with any individual issuer shall not constitute more 

than 5% of such issuer's total outstanding issue in banker's acceptances, commercial 

paper or corporate securities.  The Village’s investment portfolio shall not hold more 

than 1% of the outstanding debt of any one issuer.   

(2)   The aggregate total of all corporate securities shall not exceed 50% of the 

Village's invested Public Moneys. 

(3)   Eligible investment instruments shall have a maturity not exceeding ten (10) 

years from the date of settlement of the investment, except for mortgage-backed 

securities. 

(4)   The weighted average maturity of all Eligible Investment instruments (exclusive 

of any investment in the Ohio Subdivisions Fund created pursuant to ORC Section 

135.45) shall not exceed seven (7) five (5) years. 

(5)   The maturity of any security issued by any federal government agency or 

instrumentality, which is an Eligible Investment Instrument pursuant to this Section, may 

exceed ten (10) years, and shall not be used in the calculation of the weighted average 

maturity identified above. (Mortgage -backed GNMA, FNMA) 

    

   (g)    Standard of Care. Investment of Public Moneys of the Village shall be made with 

exercise of that degree of judgement and care, under circumstances then prevailing, that 

persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own 

affairs, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to 

be derived. The foregoing standard shall be applied to the investment portfolio of the 

Village as a whole. 

(h)    Eligible Investments. The following obligations are eligible for investment of the 

Public Moneys of the Village ("Eligible Investments"): 

(1)   U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds or any other obligation or security issued 

by the United States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and 

interest by the United States; 

(2)   Bonds, notes, debentures or other obligations of or securities issued by any 

federal government agency or instrumentality, including, but not limited to, the Federal 

National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Government National Mortgage 

Association; 

      (3)   Bonds and notes of the State of Ohio; 

      (4)   Bonds and Notes of any county, township, school district, municipal corporation, 

or other legally constituted taxing subdivision of the State of Ohio, which is not at the 

time of such investment, in default in the payment of principal on any of its obligations, 

provided that all of the following apply: 



 

4 

21908145 _2 

A.   The debt is payable from the general revenues and backed by the full faith and 

credit of the political subdivision. 

B.   The debt is rated at the time of purchase in not less than the third highest rating 

category by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

         C.   The Village is not the sole buyer of the issue. 

      (5)   Certificates of Deposit from eligible institutions whose deposits are insured by    

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), provided that such institutions 

maintain banking operations within the State of Ohio. 

(6)   No more than 25% investment of funds in No-load money market mutual funds 

rated in the highest category by at least one nationally recognized rating agency, 

investing exclusively in the same types of eligible securities as described in items 1 and 2 

above and registered or required to be registered under the Investment Company Act of 

1940, as amended; 

(7)   Repurchase agreements for no more than 30 days with any eligible institution 

mentioned in ORC 135.32. The market value of securities subject to a repurchase 

agreement must exceed the principal value of the repo amount by at least 2%; 

(8)   Bankers acceptances drawn on and accepted by banks; provided that the issuer of 

the bankers acceptances is, at the time of acquisition, rated in the highest short-term 

rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency; 

(9)   Commercial paper issues of companies incorporated under the laws of the United 

States, rated no lower than the third highest rating category with a maximum maturity of 

270 days from the date of purchase; and 

(10)   Medium term notes issued by a corporation domiciled within the United States 

and having assets in excess of $500 million, provided that such notes have a maximum 

maturity of 8 years and are rated, at the time of purchase, by Standard & Poor's, Moody's 

or Fitch under the following limitations: 

Standard & Poor’s 

and/or Fitch 

Moody’s 

A+ (2-yr max maturity) A1 (2-yr max maturity) 

A (2-yr max maturity) A2 (2-yr max maturity) 

A- (2-yr max maturity) A3 (2-yr max maturity) 

AA+ (3-yr max maturity) Aa1 (3-yr max maturity) 

AA (3-yr max maturity) Aa2 (3-yr max maturity) 

AA- (3-yr max maturity) Aa3 (3-yr max maturity) 

AAA (maturity > 3 years) Aaa (maturity > 3 years) 

  

If a security has a split rating, the higher lower of the two (2) ratings shall be used to 

determine the eligibility for investment purposes. In no event shall a corporate security, at 

the time of purchase, be rated less than A- by Standard & Poor's or less than an A3 by 

Moody's. 

(11)   The state treasurer's investment pools (STAR OHIO and STAR PLUS), 

pursuant to ORC 135.45, 

(12)   General obligation and revenue bonds of any non-Ohio municipal corporation, 

provided that all of the following apply: 



 

5 

21908145 _2 

A.   The debt is payable from the general revenues and backed by the full faith and 

credit of the political subdivision. 

B.   The debt is rated at the time of purchase in not less than the third highest rating 

category by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

         C.   The Village is not the sole buyer of the issue. 

   (i)    Prohibited Investments and Practices. Derivative investments, reverse repurchase 

agreements, stripped principal or interest obligations of issuances, issuance of taxable 

notes for purposes of arbitrage, contracting to sell securities that have not been acquired 

on the speculation that bond prices will decline, leveraging of current investments as 

collateral to purchase other investments, and any other investment not herein defined as 

an Eligible Investment. 

(j)   Sale of Securities Prior to Maturity. Securities may be redeemed or sold prior to 

maturity under the following conditions: 

      (1)   To meet additional liquidity needs; 

      (2)   To purchase another security to increase yield or current income; 

      (3)   To purchase another security to lengthen or shorten maturity; 

      (4)   To realize any capital gains and/or income; or 

      (5)   To increase investment quality. 

   (k)    Restrictions on Investments. All restrictions or limitations placed on the 

acquisition of an Eligible Investments shall apply at the time of purchase. Should a 

breach of this policy occur subsequent to the purchase of an Eligible Investment, the 

Investment Advisor shall notify the Treasurer for the Village of Gates Mills within thirty 

(30) days to discuss what action to take with respect to any investment or security that is 

in breach of this policy, including, but not limited to, holding the security that is in 

breach. (Ord. 2017-28. Passed 9-8-17.) 

(l)   Safekeeping and Custody. Securities purchased for the Village of Gates Mills will 

be held in safekeeping by a trustee (“custodian”) approved by Village Council. Securities 

held in safekeeping by the custodian will be evidenced by quarterly (calendar) statements 

describing such securities. The custodian may safe keep the Village’s securities in (1) 

Federal Reserve Bank book entry form; (2) Depository Trust Company (DTC) book entry 

form in the account of the custodian or the custodian’s correspondent bank, or (3) non-

book entry (physical) securities held by the custodian or the custodian’s correspondent 

bank. All securities transactions will settle using standard delivery-vs.-payment 

procedures. The records of the custodian shall identify such securities in the name of the 

investing authority. (Ord. 2017-33. Passed 9-12-17.) 

    

   (m)    Statements of Compliance. This investment policy has been approved by the 

Treasurer and the Council of the Village of Gates Mills and filed with the Auditor of 

State, pursuant to ORC 135.35(K)(1). 

All brokers, dealers, and financial institutions executing transactions initiated by the 

Treasurer have signed the approved investment policy. 

Any amendments to this policy will be filed with the Auditor of State within fifteen 

days of the effective date of the amendment. The policy and any amendments thereof will 

be filed at the following address: 

         Auditor of State 

         ATTN: Clerk of the Bureau 



 

6 

21908145 _2 

         P.O. Box 1140 

         Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140.” 

 

 

 Section 2: Section 155.04 of the Codified Ordinances of the Village of Gates Mills 

Heights as it existed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance is hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 3. Council hereby adopts the Investment Policy Statement and its Guidelines 

which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 4. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 

and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 

that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, 

were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 

121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force form and after the earliest 

period allowed by law. 

 

            Passed this _____ day of ______________, 2024. 

 

    __________________________________________ 

    President of Council 

            ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor 

 



 

7 

21908145 _2 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Village of Gates Mills 

Investment Policy Statement 

August 2024 
 

 

Objectives: The Investment Advisor has been selected to manage a domestic intermediate-term 

fixed income portfolio with the objectives of preserving the value and safety of the principal 

involved, maintaining liquidity, generating income and providing for prudent diversification of 

investments in order to minimize credit and market risk exposure. This Investment Policy 

Statement contains “guidelines” which are meant to simplify the Village of Gates Mills’ 

direction to the Investment Advisor but shall not conflict with Village of Gates Mills Codified 

Ordinance Section 155.04, Investment Policy, as filed with the Auditor of the State of Ohio. 

 

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 

 

• Holdings - Eligible securities should include the following: (1) obligations issued or 

guaranteed by the U.S. federal government, U.S. federal agencies, or U.S. government-

sponsored corporations and agencies including mortgage-backed securities; (2) obligations of 

U.S. corporations such as bonds, commercial paper, certificates of deposit and bankers 

acceptances; (3) government money market funds; (4) municipal bonds; (5) STAR Ohio 

funds.  Targets and ranges for the portfolio are provided as follows: 

 

Asset Class Minimum Maximum 

Government Bonds/Cash Equivalents 50% 100% 

Corporate Bonds 0% 50% 

 

  

• Issuer Maximum – The portfolio shall not contain more than 5% (valued at market) of 

a given domestic issuer (regardless of the number of different issues) except for U.S. 

Government Obligations.  The portfolio shall not hold more than 1% of the 

outstanding debt of an issuer.   

 

• Credit Quality - Fixed-Income investments shall be made in those rated A3 or better by 

Moody’s AND A- or better by Standard & Poor’s at the time of purchase. In aggregate, the 

portfolio shall maintain an average credit quality rating of at least A2/A.   At times, different 

rating services may arrive at different ratings based on their own independent evaluation of 

the security – this is known as split rating.  In these situations, the lower rating applies for 

determining investment eligibility in the portfolio.   

 



 

8 

21908145 _2 

• If a security is downgraded below the minimum allowable credit rating of A3/A-, the 

investment advisor has 60 days to eliminate the position from the portfolio or discuss 

corrective action with the Village of Gates Mills.   

 

• Maturity/Duration – The maximum maturity, except for mortgage-backed securities, of an 

issue purchased shall be 10 (ten) years.  The maximum average duration of the overall 

portfolio shall not exceed 5 (five) years.     

 

• Broker/Dealers - The use of specific brokers/dealers will be at the discretion of the 

Investment Advisor but upon notice to the Investment Advisor, subject to the review and 

approval of the Village of Gates Mills. 

 

• Review of Guidelines – These guidelines will be reviewed at least on an annual basis by the 

Investment Advisor and the Village of Gates Mills.     

 

 

Village of Gates Mills 

 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

        Steven L. Siemborski, Mayor 

 

 

Date:  ______________________________ 
 



 

21869909 _2 

ORDINANCE NO.  2024-29 

 

  BY:   STEINBRINK 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1131.07 AND ENACTING NEW 

SECTION 1157.10 OF CHAPTER 1157, “ZONING USES”, OF THE 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF GATES MILLS TO 

PROHIBIT ADULT USE CANNABIS OPERATORS IN THE VILLAGE.  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3780.25(A) of the Ohio Revised Code, the legislative 
authority of a municipal corporation may adopt an ordinance by majority vote to prohibit adult 
use cannabis operators from operating in the Village but who would otherwise be permitted to 
operate under Chapter 3780 of the Ohio Revised Code, which legislation was enacted by the 
Ohio General Assembly with respect to adult use cannabis control; 

WHEREAS, Council desires to amend Section 1131.07, “Definitions”, of Chapter 1131, 
“General Provisions and Definitions”, of the Planning and Zoning Code to add the definition of 
“Adult Use Cannabis Operator” and to enact new Section 1157.10 of Chapter 1157, “Zoning 
Uses”, to prohibit adult use cannabis operators in the Village of Gates Mills. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Gates Mills, 

Ohio, that: 

 

Section 1: Section 1131.07, “Definitions”, of Chapter 1131, “General Provisions and 

Definitions”, of the Planning and Zoning Code of the Codified Ordinances of the Village of Gates 

Mills is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 “1131.07 DEFINITIONS. 

*** 

(b)   “Adult use cannabis operator” means a Level I adult use cultivator, a Level II 

adult use cultivator, a Level III adult use cultivator, an adult use processor, and an 

adult use dispensary, all as defined in Section 3780.01 of the Ohio Revised Code, as 

said Section may be amended from time to time.” 

Section 2: All remaining subsections of Section 1131.07, “Definitions”, shall be 

redesignated with letters and numbers to conform with the new subsection adopted in Section 1 of 

this Ordinance. 

  

Section 3: New Section 1157.10 of Chapter 1157, “Zoning Uses”, of Planning and 

Zoning Code of the Codified Ordinances of the Village of Gates Mills to prohibit adult use 

cannabis operators in the Village of Gates Mills is hereby enacted to hereafter provide as 

follows: 

 

“1157.10 PROHIBITION OF ADULT USE CANNABIS OPERATORS. 

 

(a) Definition of Adult Use Cannabis Operator.  For the purpose of this Section, 

“adult use cannabis operator” shall be as defined in Chapter 1131 of this Code. 



 

2 
21869909 _2 

 

    (b) Prohibited Activity.  

 

(1) No person shall operate any business as an adult use cannabis operator within the 

Village of Gates Mills, Ohio. 

 

(2) No building permits, certificates of occupancy, or any other permits shall be 

granted by the Village of Gates Mills to any person who intends to open, use any 

land or devote any floor area of a business for the purpose of the sale of cannabis.  

No existing business in the Village may expand in any way that would establish 

the sale of cannabis. 

 

` (c) If any provision of this section, or the application of such provision, shall be 

rendered or declared invalid by any court action or by reason of any existing or 

subsequently enacted legislation, the remaining parts or portions of this section shall 

remain in full force and effect.” 

 

Section 4. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 

that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, 

were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 

121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 5 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 

period allowed by law. 

Passed this _____ day of ______________, 2024. 

 

    __________________________________________ 
    President of Council 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor            
 







 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 32 

BY MAYOR SIEMBORSKI 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER TO THE CONTRACT 

WITH THE ECLIPSE COMPANIES, LLC FOR THE COUNTY LINE ROAD 

CULVERT #20 PROJECT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to authorization from this Council in Resolution No. 2024-20, a 

contract was awarded and executed with The Eclipse Companies, LLC, pursuant to competitive 

bidding, for labor and materials for the Village’s County Line Road Culvert #20 Project in the 

amount of $70,000.00;  

 

WHEREAS, additional labor and materials were required to complete necessary additional 

reconstruction work that arose during the progress of the work;  

 

WHEREAS, this Council finds that the labor and materials necessary for this additional 

work supports the change order requested by Eclipse in the amount of $12,567.23 (the “Change 

Order”); 

 

WHEREAS, the savings on the authorized amounts for the cost of other public 

improvement projects of the Village in 2023 have more than offset the cost of this Change Order 

with savings on the Mayfield Road Culvert Project and the 2024 Road Program; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Gates Mills, 

Cuyahoga County, State of Ohio, that: 

 

Section 1. The Mayor is authorized to execute the requested Change Order from The 

Eclipse Companies, LLC in the amount of $12,567.23 which, therefore, increases the authorized 

contract amount payable to Eclipse to an amount not to exceed $82,567.23. 

 

Section 2:  It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 

and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, 

and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal 

action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including 

Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

Section 3:  This Resolution is declared to be an emergency measure necessary to 

preserve the public health, safety and welfare of the Village, its residents, and motorists using 

County Line Road and those persons who own property thereon; and, therefore, provided this 

Resolution receives the requisite number of votes pursuant to the Village Charter, it shall take 

effect and be in full force immediately upon the signature by the Mayor. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 
21905146 _1 

Passed the ____ day of____________________, 2024. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

President of Council 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________, Mayor 

 

 

 


	COUNCIL AGENDA AUGUST 2024.pdf
	Draft July 16 3024 Council Minutes.pdf
	pay ordinance no 2288.pdf
	Financial Statement July 31 2024.pdf
	Financial Report August 2024.pdf
	Police Department Report August 2024.pdf
	Service Department Report August 2024.pdf
	Fire Department Report - August 2024.pdf
	FAQ - Wastewater.pdf
	Ordinance No 2024-28.pdf
	Ordinance No 2024-29.pdf
	Ordinance No 2034-30.pdf
	Ordinance No 2034-31.pdf
	Resolution No 2024-32.pdf

